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City of - 

Minnesota, USA 

May 24,2004 

To the City Council and Citizens of the City of Roseville: 

Minnesota statutes require all cities to issue an annual report on its financial position and activity 
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), and audited in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public 
accountants or the Office of the State Auditor. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the 
comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Roseville for the fiscal year ended 
December 3 1,2003. 

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the City of 
Roseville. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and 
reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for 
making these representations, management of the City of Roseville has established a 
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government's 
assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the 
preparation of the City of Roseville's financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because 
the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Roseville's internal 
controls have been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the 
financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to 
the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material 
respects. 

The City of Roseville's financial statements have been audited by Kern, Dewenter, Viere Ltd. a 
firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of Roseville for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2003, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent 
auditor concluded based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an 
unqualified opinion that the City of Roseville's financial statements for the fiscal year ended 
December 3 1, 2003, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's 
report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report. 



GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to 
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis 
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in 
conjunction with it. The City of Roseville's MD&A can be found immediately following the 
report of the independent auditors. 

Profile of the Government 
The City of Roseville, incorporated in 1948, is a suburban community bordering both 
Minneapolis and St Paul Minnesota in the eastern part of the state. This area is considered to be 
the major population and economic growth area in the state, and among one of the highly ranked 
economic growth areas in the country. The City of Roseville currently occupies a land area of 
13.7 square miles and serves a population of 33,690. The City of Roseville is empowered to levy 
a property tax on both real and personal properties located within its boundaries. While it also is 
empowered by state statute to extend its corporate limits by annexation, Roseville is a 
completely developed community and is bordered on all sides by other incorporated 
communities. 

The City of Roseville has operated under the council-manager form of government since 1974. 
Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in a city council consisting of the mayor and 
four other members. The city council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, 
adopting the budget, appointing committees, and hiring the city manager. The city manager is 
responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the council, for overseeing the day-to- 
day operations of the city government, and for appointing the heads of the various departments. 
The council is elected on a non-partisan basis. Council members serve four-year staggered 
terms, with three council members elected every four years and the mayor and one council 
member elected in staggered four-year terms. The council and mayor are elected at large. 

The City of Roseville provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection; the 
construction and maintenance of highways, streets, and other infrastructure; water and sewer 
services and recreational activities and cultural events. 

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Roseville's financial planning and 
control. All departments and agencies of the City of Roseville submit requests for appropriation 
to the city manager in May of each year. The city manager uses these requests as the starting 
point for developing a proposed budget. The city manager then presents this proposed budget to 
the council for review prior to August 3 1. The council is required to hold public hearings on the 
proposed budget and to adopt a final budget by no later than December 3 1, the close of the City 
of Roseville's fiscal year. 



The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g., public safety), and department (e.g., 
police). Department heads may make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers 
of appropriations between funds, however, require the special approval of the city council. 
Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund 
for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the general fund, this 
comparison is presented on page 33 as part of the basic financial statements for the governmental 
funds. For governmental h d s ,  other than the general fund, with appropriated annual budgets, 
this comparison is presented in the governmental fund subsection of this report, are shown on 
pages 34-35, and 76-79. 

Factors Affecting Financial Condition 
The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is 
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of 
Roseville operates. 

Local economy. The City of Roseville currently enjoys a favorable economic environment and 
local indicators point to continued stability and improvement, in conjunction with an improving 
national economy. The region while noted for a strong retail sector, enjoyed considerable re- 
development in recent years. The re-development consisted of varied manufacturing, medical 
and high-tech base that adds to the relative stability of the unemployment rate. Major industries 
with headquarters or divisions located within the government's boundaries or in close proximity 
include computer hardware and software manufacturers, electrical controls and medical services, 
and several divisions of state government departments which administer the state highway 
system and the states' educational administration of K- 12 operations. 

The City of Roseville area has an employed labor force of approximately 45,000 which is 
anticipated to grow at a rate of 3 percent each year for the next several years. 

Because of the fully developed nature of the community, the opportunity for new and expanded 
housing is limited. The city's emphasis has been, in recent years, on assisting homeowners to 
redevelop and remodel the current available housing so that as the change-over from older 
residents occurs, younger families will continue to be attracted to Roseville. 

Long-term financial planning. The city council is in the planning stages of improving both 
governmental service facilities for public safety and general governmental use, and a community 
center with facilities needed for attracting and retaining a strong resident population. 

In November, 2002, voters approved a $9.7 million referendum to construct and equip a public 
safety addition to City Hall, and an expanded Public Works Facility. Construction is expected to 
be completed in the fall of 2004. 

The city is also working closely with state, federal and neighboring communities to improve the 
area's state and county transportation network, which includes commuter rail, upgraded 
highways and well-placed pathways. Funding for most of the transportation improvements will 
need to come from state, county and federal sources, with some minor portion supported by the 
local taxpayers. 



Cash management policies and practices. Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested 
in certificates of deposit, obligations of the US Treasury, and government agencies. The 
maturities of the investments range from 7 days to 10 years, with an average maturity of 36 
months. The investment income return for 2003 on all investments was 5.0 percent. 

Risk management. The City has actively worked to limit both its liability risk and insurance 
costs since 1980. The City has self-insured its workers' compensation risk by maintaining a fund 
of approximately $2 million and securing stop loss coverage through the state's reinsurance fund. 
The general liability of the City has been placed with the League of Minnesota Cities Insurance 
Trust. However, to limit its cost, the City has maintained a deductible of $50,000 with the 
appropriate limits. These deductibles are funded from the Risk Management Fund, which 
maintains a balance of approximately $1 million. The funding for the insurance programs is 
from a combination of property taxes, insurance rebates, and departmental charges. In 2000 the 
City added an umbrella policy which will protect the City in the event the state's statutory 
liability limit would not apply to a claim. 

Awards and Acknowledgements 
The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement 
for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Roseville for its comprehensive annual 
financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended December 3 1, 2002. This was the 24th 
consecutive year that the city has received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement, the government published an easily readable and efficiently 
organized CAFR. This report satisfied both GAAP and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that out current 
CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are 
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

In addition, the government also received the GFOA's Distinguished Budget Presentation Award 
for its annual budget document dated January 1, 2003. In order to qualify for the Distinguished 
Budget Presentation Award, the government's budget document was judged to be proficient in 
several categories, including as a policy document, a financial plan, an operations guide, and a 
communications device. 

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the dedicated services of the 
Finance Department Staff. I would like to express my appreciation to all members of the 
department who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report. Credit also must be 
given to the Mayor and the City Council for their unfailing support for maintaining the highest 
standards of professionalism in the management of the City of Roseville's finances. 

Respectfully submitted 

Christopher K. Miller 
Finance Director 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

April 2 1,2004 

Honorable Mayor and Members 
of the City Council 

City of Roseville 
Roseville, Minnesota 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining h n d  information of the 
City of Roseville, Minnesota, as of and for the year ended December 3 1,2003, which 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are fiee of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

Ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major hnd,  and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Roseville, Minnesota, 
as of December 31,2003, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where 
applicable, thereof and the budgetary comparison for the General Fund, Recreation Special 
Revenue Fund and Community Development Special Revenue Fund for the year then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 



K E R N .  D E W E N T E R . V I E R E  

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 21, 
2004, on our consideration of the City of Roseville, Minnesota's internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts 
and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of 
our audit. 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 13 through 23 is not a required part of the 
basic financial statements but is supplemental information required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted 
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation 
of the required supplemental information. However, we did not audit the information and 
express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary 
information identified in the table of contents as combining and individual find financial 
statements, schedules and supplemental information are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and 
individual fund financial statements, schedules and supplemental information have been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in 
our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole. 

The information identified in the table of contents as the Introductory and Statistical Sections are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements of the City of Roseville, Minnesota. The Introductory and Statistical Sections have 
not been subjected to the audit procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements 
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

KERN, DEWENTER, VIERE, LTD. 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 



Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As management of the City of Roseville, we offer readers of the City of Roseville's 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the 
City of Roseville for the fiscal year ended December 3 1,2003. We encourage readers to 
consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that 
we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 1-4 of this 
report. 

Financial Highlights 
The assets of the City of Roseville exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most 
recent fiscal year by $156,800,657 (Net assets). Of this amount, $21,414,867 
(unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the government's ongoing 
obligations to citizens and creditors in accordance with the City's fund 
designations and fiscal policies. 
The City's total net assets from operations decreased by $804,653. 
As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Roseville's governmental 
funds reported combined ending fund balances of $3 1,692,878. Forty-three (43) 
percent of this total amount, $13,498,491, is available for use within the City's 
designations and policies. 
At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund 
was $5,636,721, or 61% percent of total general fund expenditures. 
The City of Roseville total bonded debt increased by $7,935,000 during the 
current fiscal year. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
The discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of 
Roseville's basic financial statements. The City of Roseville's basic financial statements 
comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial 
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other 
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Roseville's finances, in 
a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City of Roseville's assets 
and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, 
increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the 
financial position of the City of Roseville is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets 
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon 
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some 



items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. uncollected taxes and 
earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of 
Roseville that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues 
(governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a 
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). 
The governmental activities of the City of Roseville include general government, public 
safety, public works, economic development, and recreation. The business-type activities 
of the City of Roseville include water, sanitary sewer, golf, recycling and storm drainage. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 26-27 of this report. 

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to 
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or 
objectives. The City of Roseville, like other state and local governments, uses fund 
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. All of the funds of the City of Roseville can be divided into three 
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental 
fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable 
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal 
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financial 
requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide 
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental 
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government- 
wide financial statement. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term 
impact of the City's near term financial decisions. Both the governmental fund balance 
sheet and governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and change in fund 
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental 
funds and governmental activities. 

The City of Roseville maintains ten individual major governmental funds. Information is 
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental 
fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general 
fund, two special revenue funds, two debt service funds, three capital funds, and two 
permanent funds, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other 
seven governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. 
Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the 
form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 



The City of Roseville adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general and special 
revenue funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for those funds to 
demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 28-35 of this 
report. 

Proprietary funds. The City of Roseville maintains two different types of proprietary 
funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type 
activities in the governmental-wide financial statements. The City of Roseville uses 
enterprise funds to account for its sanitary sewer, water, golf, recycling and storm 
drainage operations. Internal service funds are accounting devices used to accumulate 
and allocate costs internally among the City of Roseville's various functions. The City of 
Roseville uses internal service funds to account for its workers' compensation and general 
risk management. Because both of these services predominantly benefit governmental 
rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide 
separate information for the sanitary sewer, water, golf, recycling and storm drainage 
operations. All of which are considered to be major funds of the City of Roseville. 
Conversely, both internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated 
presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the 
internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this 
report. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 36-41 of this 
report. 

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit 
of parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government- 
wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to 
support the City of Roseville's own program. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is 
much like that used for proprietary funds. 

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 42-43 of this report. 

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provided additional information that is 
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund 
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 45-72 
of this report. 

Other information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with 
non-major governmental funds and internal service funds are presented immediately 



following the required supplementary information on pensions. Combining and 
individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 74-91 of this report. 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indictor of a government's 
financial position. In the case of the City of Roseville, assets exceeded liabilities by 
$1 56,800,657 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 

By far the largest portion of the City of Roseville's net assets (74% percent) reflects its 
investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, and equipment) less any 
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City of Roseville 
uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not 
available for future spending. Although the City of Roseville's investment in its capital 
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay 
this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot 
be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

CITY OF ROSEVILLE'S NET ASSETS 

A portion of the of the City of Roseville's net assets represents resources that are subject 
to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted 
net assets ($25,323,455) may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens 
and creditors. 

Total 
2002 

debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 
Total net assets 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Roseville is able to report positive 
balances in all three categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well 
as for its separate governmental and business-type activities. 

Total 
2003 

Current and other 

98,124,347 
19,069,579 
13,268,393 

$130.462.3 19 

Governmental 
Activities 

2003 

96,613,757 
15,925,108 
17,954,2 19 

$1 30.493.084 

Governmental 
Activities 

2002 

18,191,864 

8,146,474 
$26.338.338 

Business- 
Type 
2003 

Business- 
TW 
2002 

26,972,178 

7,369,326 
$34.341 SO4 

1 16,316,211 
19,069,579 
21,414,867 

$1 56.800.657 

123,585,935 
15,925,108 
25,323,455 

$1 64.834.588 



Governmental activities 
Governmental activities decreased the City of Roseville's net assets by $1,372,217. This 
was partially offset by an increase in Business-type net assets of $567,564, for an overall 
decrease of $804,653. Key elements of this increase are as follows: 

City of Roseville's Changes in Net Assets 

Governmental 
Activities / 2003 

Revenues: 
Program revenues: I 
Charges for services I $53 15,530 
Operating grants and I 
Contributions I 863,338 
Capital grants and 

General revenues: I 
Pro~ertv taxes 8.03 1.962 

contributions 524,071 

Grants & 
Contributions not 
Restricted to s~ecific 

Other taxes 2,808,720 

Governmental ' 
Activities 

2002 

Programs 
Investment earnings 
Other 

Total revenues 

Business- 
T y ~ e  
2002 

Business- 
T y ~ e  
2003 

Expenses: 
General government 
Public safety 
Streets 
Economic 

25,353 
1,322,877 

$19.09 1.85 1 

net assets 
Net assets on Jan 1 " 
Prior Period 

Total 
2003 

$2,756,291 
6,542,900 
3,709,870 

Adjustment 
Net assets on Dec 3 1" 

Total 
2002 

8 16,482 
3,015,307 

6,529 
$2 1.761 -936 

(1,372,217) 
130,493,084 

$2,670,864 
5,139,220 
4,438,832 

1,341,452 
$1 3O,462,3 19 

317,371 

$8.417.453 

1,797,202 
128,695,882 

S - 

- 
$130,493,084 

523,927 
24,758 

$7.83 1.369 

567,564 
34,341,504 

$ - 

(8,570,732) 
$26,338,336 

25,353 
1,640,248 

$27,509.304 

(882,659) 
35,765,111 

8 16,482 
3,539,234 

3 1,287 
$29,593,304 

$2,756,291 
6,542,900 
3,709,870 

(540,948) 
$34,341,504 

$2,670,864 
5,139,220 
4,438,832 

(804,653) 
164,834,588 

914,542 
164,460,993 

(7,229,280) 
$1 56,800,656 

(540,948) 
$164,834,588 



Below are specific graphs which provide comparisons of the governmental activities 
revenues and expenditures 

Expenses and Program Revenues-Governmental Activities 

General Public Safety Public Works Recreation Economtc Interest on 
Govern Develop. Long Term 

Debt 

Revenue Sources-Governmental Activities 
WJ Operating 

grants 
5% 



Business-type activities. Business-type activities net assets increased in 2003. Below 
are graphs showing the business-type activities revenue and expense comparisons. 

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-Type Activities 
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Financial Analysis of the Government's funds 

Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Roseville's governmental funds is to 
provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. 
Such information is useful in assessing the City of Roseville's financing requirements. In 
particular, unreserved find balance may serve as usefbl measure of a government's net 
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Roseville's governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $3 1,692,878. Approximately 55% of this total amount 
($1 7,411,373) constitutes unreserved fund balance. The remainder of the fund balance is 
reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been 
committed; 1) for tax reduction ($1,949,855), 2) for future infrastructure replacement 
($12,2 17,933), and 3) for law enforcement activities ($1 l3,7 17). 

The General Fund increased by $843,352 in 2003, largely due to land sale proceeds. The 
proceeds helped offset the loss of $700,000 in state aid that had been originally pledged 
by the State of Minnesota but was rescinded during mid-2003 in response to their own 
budget reduction plan. The Recreation Fund increased slightly by $790. The 
Community Development fund decreased in 2003 by $153,349 primarily due to less than 
expected building permit fees. Both the General Improvement Debt Service and Tax 
Increment Bond Funds decreased substantially in 2003. This resulted from the calling of 
several bond issues in prior years. The City's Revolving Improvements Fund increased 
$3,468,971 in 2003. The increase was the result of a bond sale that was held in early 
2003 to finance the construction of the expansion of City Hall and the Public Works 
Building. Approximately $3.5 million of construction remained at the end of the fiscal 
year. 

Proprietary funds. The City of Roseville's proprietary funds provide the same type of 
information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

The unrestricted net assets in the respective proprietary funds are Sewer - $5,301,096, 
Water - $(149,465), Golf - $389,905, Recycling - $98,666 and Storm - $2,506,272. All 
propriety funds had slight increases in net assets in 2003. Due to timing differences in 
the user fees and capital improvements, increases (or decreases) can occur. 



Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital assets. The City of Roseville's investment in capital assets for its governmental 
and business type activities as of December 31, 2003, amounts to $127,358,428 (net of 
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, 
infrastructure, machinery and equipment. 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 

Completion of a $250 thousand in upgrades to parks facilities. 
Construction of $6.5 million for the expansion of City Hall and the Public Works 
Building 

City of Roseville's Capital Assets 
(Net of Depreciation) 

Additional information on the City of Roseville's capital assets can be found in Note 1-D 
on page 50 of this report, and Note 4-C on page 57. 

Total 
2002 

$7,195,954 
12,395,614 

equipment 
Infrastructure 
Total capital assets 

Business- 
Type 
2002 
$475,714 
648,814 

Business- 
' b e  
2003 
$475,714 
608,133 

Land 
Buildings 
Machinery & 

6,780,869 
59,624,687 

$109,166,564 

Total 
2003 

$6,308,225 
18,079,143 

Governmental 
Activities 

2003 
$5,832,5 1 1 
17,471,010 

6,613,544 
79,649,22 1 

$104,729,805 

Govemmental 
Activities 

2002 
$6,720,240 
1 1,746,800 

779,860 
15,9 1 1,023 

$18,191,864 

903,826 
24,943,824 

$26,972,178 

7,560,729 
75,535,710 

$127,358,734 

7,5 17,370 
104,593,045 

$13 1,701,983 



Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Roseville had total 
long-term debt outstanding of $15,495,000; of which $5,795,000 was for general 
obligation improvement debt which has financed special assessment construction as part 
of the City's paving management program, as well as $9,700,000 for the general 
obligation municipal building debt which financed the construction of the expansion of 
City Hall and the Public Works Building. In addition, the City also has long-term debt in 
the amount of $45,378 for the improvement of energy efficiency in the governmental 
buildings, and $ W , 6  1 1 for compensated absences. 

City of Roseville's Outstanding Debt 
General Obligation Improvement Bonds, General Obligation Tax Increment Bonds, 

Long-Term Notes and Compensated Absences 

Improvement bonds I $5,795,000 1 $7,560,000 1 $ -  I $ - I  $5,795,000 1 $7,560,000 
General Obligation I I I I 

General Obligation 

I Severance ~ a v  I - I - I - I - I - I - I 

Governmental 
Activities 

2003 

Municipal bonds 
Long-term notes pay 

The City of Roseville maintains an Aal rating from Moody's and an AA from Standard 
and Poor's on all of its general obligation debt. 

Governmental 
Activities 

2002 

9,700,000 
45,378 

Compensated absences I 595,611 1 495,672 1 I 

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a Minnesota city may issue to 
2% of total Estimated Market Value. The current debt limitation for the City of Roseville 
is $59,084,800. $9,700,000 of the City's outstanding debt is counted against the statutory 
limitation as the debt is wholly financed by general tax levy. 

595,611 1 495,672 

Additional information on the City of Roseville's long-term debt can be found in Note I- 
D on page 5 1 of this report, and Note 4-G on page 61. 

Business- 
TW 
2003 

60,376 

Total 1 $16,135,989 1 $8,116,048 1 $ -  1 $ 7,251 1 $16,135,989 1 $8,123,299 

Economic Factors and next year's Budgets and Rates 
Due to property tax reforms and continued projected budget deficits at the State 
Level, the City made efforts to provide for the reduction in State-aid and a shift in 
overall tax burden. 
Recreation program fees were increased to reflect the rising costs of individual 
programs. In addition, user charges for proprietary funds were also changed to 
reflect current and anticipated conditions 

These factors were considered when the City of Roseville prepared its 2004 budget. 

Business- 
Type 
2002 

7,25 1 

Total 
2003 

9,700,000 
45,378 

Total 
2002 

67,627 



Requests for information. This financial report is designed to provide a general 
overview of the City of Roseville's finances for all those with an interest in the 
government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Office 
of the Finance Director, 2660 Civic Center Drive, Roseville, MN 551 13. 
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CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

December 31,2003 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted investments 

Utility customer deposits 
Receivables 

Accounts 
Taxes 
Special assessments 

Due from other governments 
Property and equipment, net of depreciation: 

Land 
Buildings 
Improvements other than buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 
Infrastructure 
Construction in progress 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll 
contracts payable 
Bond interest payable 
Due to other governments 
Insurance claim payable 
Deposits payable 
Notes Payable 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 

Invested in fixed assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for 

Tax increment 
Infrastructure replacement 

Expendable 
Nonexpendable 

Tax reduction 
Nonexpendabie 

Law enforcement 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



elm OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVlTIES 

For the Year Ended December 31,2003 

FunctionJlPrograms 
Governmental activities: 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Recreation 
Economic development 
Interest on 

long-term debt 
Total governmental 

activities 

Net (Expense) Revenue 
Program Revenues and Changes in Net Assets 

Operating Capital 
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type 

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total 

Business-type activities: 
Sewer 2,489,956 2.5 12,282 0 0 0 22,326 22,326 
Water 4,069.84 1 4,084,4 16 0 0 0 14,575 14,575 
Golf 358,726 303,708 0 0 0 (55,018) (55.0 18) 
Recycling 235,179 208,170 29,291 0 0 2,282 2,282 
Storm Drainage 696,187 596.03 1 0 366,184 0 266,028 266,028 

Total business- 
type activities 7,849,889 7,704,607 29,291 366,184 0 250,193 250,193 

Total Government 28,3 13,957 13,220,137 892,629 890,255 (13,561,129) 250,193 (13,310,936) 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 
Tax increments 
Franchise Fees 
Gambling Taxes 
Grants and contributions not 

restricted to specific programs 
Unrestricted investment earnings 

Total general revenues 

Change in net assets (1,372,217) 567,564 (804,653) 

Net Assets - beginning as previously stated 130,493,084 34,341,504 164,834,588 

Prior period adjustment 1,34 1,452 (8,570,732) (7,229,280) 

Net Assets - beginning as restated 

Net Assets - ending 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
December 31,2003 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 
Taxes receivable: 

Current 
Delinquent 

Tax increments-current 
Special assessments receivable: 

Deferred 
Due from other governments 
Due from other funds 
Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll 
Contracts payable 
Due to other funds 
Due to other governments 
Deferred revenue 
Deposits payable 

Total liabilities 

Fund Balance: 
Reserved for tax reduction endowment 
Reserved for future infrastructure replacement 

endowment 
Reserved for future infrastructure replacement 
Reserved for law enforcement 
Unreserved, designated for working capital 
Unreserved, designated for 

subsequent expenditures 
Unreserved reported in special revenue funds 
Unreserved reported in capital projects funds 
Undesignated 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

Special Revenue Debt Service 
Community General Obligation General Obligation 

General Recreation ~evelopment lmprovement~Bonds Tax ~ncremcnt Bonds 

Capital assets (net of depreciation) used in governmental activities and are not financial resources and therefore, are not reported 
in the funds. 

Long term liabilities including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore, are not reported 
in the funds. 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of insurance to individual funds. 
Other long term assets not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



Capital Projects Permanent 
Revolving Economic Increments Street Infrastructure Other 

lmprovemeks Construction Construction Tax Reduction Replacement Governmental Funds Total 

3;141;048 
Net Assets of governmental activities $ 130,462,319 



CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES M FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the Yar Ended December 31,2003 

Special Revenue Debt Service 
Community General Obligation General Obligation 

General Recreation Development lmprovement Bonds Tax Increment Bonds 
REVENUES 
General property taxes 
Tax Increments 
lntergovemmental revenue 
Licenses & permits 
Gambling taxes 
Charges for services 
Fines and forfeits 
Franchise fees 
Rentals 
Donations 
Special assessments 
lnvestment income 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Economic development 
Recreation 
Community development 

Debt service 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers in 
Transfers (out) 
Sale of capital assets 
Bond Proceeds 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



Capital Projects Permanent 
Revolving Economic Increments Street Inhastructurr Other - 

Improvements Construction Construction 

S ' 373.034 S 0 S 0 
0 2,542.669 0 

84.4 14 3,177 254.142 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 (3.847) 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 

1.000 0 0 
30.285 0 340,978 

(45.1 77) 475.688 92,034 
136,525 190,000 0 
580,081 3.21 1,534 683,307 

Tax Reduction Replament Governmental Funds Total 

S 8,031.962 
2,509.792 
1.4 12.762 
2,017,417 

57.875 
2,956,205 

181.567 
241.053 

30.197 
86.328 

885.226 



CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Year Ended December 31,2003 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities 
are different because: 

Net change in fund balances--total governmental funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in 
the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the 
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. 

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets 
including disposal , which decrease net assets. 

Payments on general obligation debt 

Payments on notes payable 

Bonds Proceeds 

Net change due to internal service funds incorporated into statement of activities 

Changes in compensated absences 

Changes in bond interest payable 

Special assessments, property tax and tax increment collected for prior years 

Change in net assets of governmental activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



REVENUES 
General property tax 
Intergovernmental revenue 
License and permits 
Charges for service 
Fines and forfeits 
Donations 
Special Assessments 
Investment Income 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended December 31,2003 

Variance with 
Budget Final Budget- 

Actual Positive 
Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenue over 
(under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



REVENUES 
General property taxes 
Charges for services 
Rentals 
Donations 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Personal services 
Supplies & materials 
Other services & charges 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
RECREATION FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended December 31,2003 

Variance with 
Budget Final Budget 

Positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources 

Net change in h n d  balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



REVENUES 
Licenses and permits 
Charges for services 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended December 31,2003 

Variance with 
Budget Final Budget 

Positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

EXPENDITURES 
Personal services 
Supplies and materials 
Other services and charges 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Sale of capital assets 
Transfer out 

Total other financing sources 
sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 
Special Assessments 
Due from other funds 
Due from other governments 

Total current assets 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Customer deposits 

Total restricted assets 

Property and equipment 
Property and equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Net property and equipment 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll 
Due to other funds 
Due to other governments 
Contracts payable 
Insurance claims payable 
Notes payable 

Total current liabilities 

CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
December 31,2003 

With Comparative Totals for Year Ended December 31,2002 

Noncurrent liabilities 
Meter deposits 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

Business-Type 
Sanitary Sanitary Golf 
Sewer Sewer Water Water Course 

Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Current Year 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Activities--Enterprise Funds Governmental 
Activities- 

Internal Service 
Funds 

Golf 
Course 

Prior Year 

Solid Waste 
Recycling 

Current Year 

Solid Waste 
Recycling 
Prior Year 

Storm 
Drainage 

Current Year 

Storm 
Drainage 

Prior Year 
Totals 

Current Year 



Sales and cost of sales 
Sales 
Cost of sales 

Gross profit 

CITY OF ROSEMLLE, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF-REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

With Comparative Totals for Year Ended December 31,2002 

Sanitary Sanitary 
Sewer Sewer Water Water 

Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year 

Operating revenues 
User charges 
Delinquency collections 
Other 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expense 
Personal service 
Supplies 
Other services and charges 
Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
Investment income 
Capital Contributions 
Intergovernmental operating grants 
Loss on disposal of assets 

Total nonoperating revenues 

Transfer In 

Changes in Net Assets 

Total Net Assets - beginning - as previously stated 

Adjustment for prior year's activity 

Total Net Assets Beginning - restated 

Total Net Assets - ending 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

38 



Governmental 
Golf Golf Solid Waste Solid Waste Storm Storm Activities- 

Course Course Recycling Recycling Drainage Drainage Totals Internal Service 
Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Current Year Funds 



CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
For the Year Ended December 31,2003 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from customers and users, including deposits 
Cash received from delinquent charges collected 
Cash received from other governments 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash payments to employees 
Other operating revenues (expenses) 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Principal payments on notes payable 
Purchase of fixed assets 

Net Cash used for capital and related 
financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Cash borrowed from (repaid to) other fi~nds 
Net Cash provided (used) by non-capital 

financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest received on investments 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, January 1 

Cash and cash equivalents, December 3 1 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET 
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 

to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: 
Depreciation 

Changes in elements affecting cash: 
Accounts receivable 
Special assessments 
Due h m  other governments 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll 
Due to other governments 
Contracts payable 
Other non-operating revenue 
Prior period adjustment 
Customer deposits 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Business-Type 
Sanitary Sanitary Golf 
Sewer Sewer Water Water Course 

Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year C m n t  Year 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



Activities-Enterprise Funds Governmental 
Golf Solid Waste Solid Waste S tom Stom Activities- 

Course Recycling Recycling Drainage Drainage Totals Internal Service 
Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Current Year Funds 



ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other governments 
Notes receivable 
Net fixed assets 

Net Assets held in trust 

CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
December 3 1,2003 

Investment Agency 
Trust Funds 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued Payroll 
Due to other governments 

Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Held in trust for pool participants 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF ROSEMLLE, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
For the Year Ended December 31,2003 

Investment 
Trust 

ADDITIONS: 
Operations 

Net Investment gain 
Purchase of units from participant 

Total increase from operations 

DEDUCTIONS: 
Capital share transactions (dollar amounts 

and number of shares are the same) 
Redemption of shares by participant 

Change in Net Assets 

Total net assets - beginning 

Total net assets - ending 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF ROSEVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 3 1,2003 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Reporting entity 

The City of Roseville is a municipal corporation formed under Section 412 of Minnesota State 
Statutes and operates under a Council-Manager form of government. The five-member Council and 
Mayor are elected on rotating terms in each odd-numbered year. The accompanying financial 
statements present the government entities for which the City is considered to be financially 
accountable. The City does not have any blended component units. 

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of 
changes in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. For the 
most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental 
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported 
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for 
support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function 
or segment, are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable 
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants 
who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, service or privileges provided by a given function 
or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included 
among program revenues are reported instead of general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary 
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major 
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate 
columns in the fund financial statements. 

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial 
statements. Agency funds are not reported using the economic resources measurement focus; they 
are reported using the accrual basis. With the economic resources measurement focus, revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the 
timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which 
they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 



CITY OF ROSEVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 3 1,2003 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (Continued) 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. 
For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of 
the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, 
as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditure-related to 
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal 
period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is 
considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are 
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General 
The general fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of 
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Special Revenue 
The recreation fund accounts for resources and payments related to the parks and recreation 
functions and the community development h d  accounts for resources and payments related to 
the City's building codes enforcement, development and redevelopment activities 

Debt Service 
The general improvement and tax increment debt service funds accounts for resources 
accumulated and payments for principal and interest on long term general obligation tax 
increment debt and general obligation special assessment debt. 

Capital 
The revolving improvements fund accounts for revenues and expenditures from replacement 
funds set aside for equipment and buildings replacement and from tax increments, respectively. 
The economic increments construction fund accounts for tax increment payments to various 
developers as part of Pay-as-you-go TIF agreements. The street construction fund accounts for 
revenues and expenditures related to street construction and improvements. 



CITY OF ROSEVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 3 1,2003 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (Continued) 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: (Continued) 

Permanent 
The funds for tax reduction provide resources for maintaining a reduced property tax levy. 
The infrastructure replacement fund provides for the street paving management program of the 
City. 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

The sanitary sewer fund and the water fund account for the activities related to the operation of a 
sanitary collection system and a water distribution system, respectively. 

The golf course fund, accounts for resources and payments related to the operation and 
maintenance of a municipal golf course. 

The recycling fund accounts for the resources and expenditures related to the operation of a 
waste recycling collection systems. 

The storm drainage fund accounts for activities related to the operation of a surface water 
collection system. 

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types: 

Internal service funds account for the worker's compensation and general insurance services 
provided to other departments or agencies of the City. 

The trust fund accounts for the investment activities for a not-for profit organization devoted to 
providing cable television oversight for a group of communities of which the City is a member. 

Agency funds account for resources held by the City in a purely custodial capacity for the Grass 
Lake Water Management Organization, Community Development Block Grant, Local 
Development Corporation, Roseville Lutheran Cemetery, and the Roseville Visitors Association. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, 
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the 
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private- 
sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. 
The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 



CITY OF ROSEVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 3 1,2003 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (Continued) 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements. Exceptions to this rule are payments in-lieu of taxes and other charges 
between the City's water and sewer function and various other functions of the City. Elimination of 
these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported from the various 
functions concerned. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general 
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods 
in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating 
revenue of the City's enterprise funds and internal service funds are charges to customers for sales 
and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of 
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use 
restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity 

1. Deposits and investments 

The enterprise and internal service funds participate in the pooling of City-wide cash and 
investments. Amounts from the pool are available to these funds on demand. As a result, the 
cash and investments of the enterprise and internal service funds are considered to be cash and 
cash equivalents for statement of cash flow purposes. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 3 1,2003 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity (Continued) 

1. Deposits and investments (Continued) 

State statutes authorize investments in the following: direct obligations or obligations guaranteed 
by the United States or its agencies; shares of investment companies registered under the Federal 
Investment Company Act of 1940 which receive the highest credit rating are rated in one of the 
two highest rating categories by a statistical rating agency, and all of the investments have a final 
maturity of thirteen months or less; municipal general obligations rated "A" or better; municipal 
revenue obligations rated "AA" or better, general obligations of the Minnesota Housing Finance 
Agency rated "A" or better; bankers; acceptances of United States' banks eligible for purchase of 
by the Federal Reserve System; commercial paper issued by United States corporations or their 
Canadian subsidiaries, of the highest quality category by at least two nationally recognized rating 
agencies, and maturing in 270 days or less; Guaranteed Investment Contracts guaranteed by a 
United States commercial bank, domestic branch of a foreign bank, or a United States insurance 
company, and with a credit quality in one of the top two highest categories, repurchase or reverse 
repurchase agreements and securities lending agreements with financial institutions qualifies as a 
"depository" by the City entity, with banks that are members of the Federal Reserve System with 
capitalization exceeding $10,000,000, a primary reporting dealer in U.S. government securities 
to Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or certain Minnesota securities broker-dealers. 

Investments for the City are reported at fair value. 

2. Receivables and payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lendinglborrowing arrangements outstanding at 
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due tolfrom other funds" (i.e. the current 
portion of interfund loan) or "advances tolfiom other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of 
interfund loans). 

All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due tolfrom other funds." Any 
residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities 
are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances". 

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund 
balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available 
for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources. 

All trade (utility) and property tax receivables are shown at a gross amount, since both taxes and 
trade (utility) receivables are assessable to the property taxes and are collectible upon sale of the 
assessed property. 
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DECEMBER 3 1,2003 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity (Continued) 

Receivables and payables (Continued) 

Property taxes are submitted to the County Auditor by December 28 of each year, to be levied 
on January 1 on property values assessed as of the same date. The tax levy notice is mailed in 
March with the first half payment due on May 15 and the second half payment is due on 
October 1 5. 

Unpaid taxes at December 31 become liens on the respective property and are classified in the 
financial statements as delinquent taxes receivable. 

Restricted Assets 
Certain assets in the water fund are restricted to the extent of the customer deposits, which are 
carried as liabilities. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, 
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business- 
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined 
by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $500 and an estimated useful 
life in excess of 2 years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if 
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value on 
the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extended assets lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. 

Property, plant and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight line method over the 
following estimated useful lives: 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 3 1,2003 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity (Continued) 

4. Capital Assets (Continued) 

Assets Years 
Buildings 40 
Building Improvements 2 5 
Furniture and Equipment 5 
Light Vehicles 5 
Heavy Vehicles 10 
Fire Trucks 20 
Streets and public infrastructure 5 0 
Utility distribution systems 80 

5. Compensated absences 

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation, 
compensatory time, and sick pay benefits. There is an estimate for a liability for unpaid 
accumulated sick leave, as employees may receive 320 hours upon retirement only. Other 
categories of employee separation qualify for no severance. All vacation and compensatory time, 
and estimated retirement severance are accrued when incurred in government-wide, proprietary 
fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if 
they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. 

6 .  Long-term obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, and proprietary fund type statement 
of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and 
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are 
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as 
deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental h d  types recognize bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt 
issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported 
as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds 
received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 3 1,2003 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity (Continued) 

7. Fund equity 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds reported reservations of fund balance for 
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use 
for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative Council plans that are 
subject to change. 

8. Comparative data/reclassifications 

Comparative total data for the prior year have presented only for individual enterprise funds in 
the fund financial statements in order to provide an understanding of the changes in the financial 
position and operations of these funds. 

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT- 
WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the 
government-wide statement of net assets 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance - total 
governmental funds and net assets - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide 
statement of net assets. Elements of that reconciliation are detailed as follows: 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 3 1,2003 

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT- 
WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the 
government-wide statement of net assets (Continued) 

Long-term debt: 
Bonds payable 
Bond interest payable 
Notes payable 
Compensated absences 

Change to Net Assets 

Internal service h d s  
Capital assets (net of depreciation) 
Addition of deferred revenues 

Net change to net assets - governmental activities $ 98,769,441 

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental h d  statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances and the governmental-wide statement of activities 

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a 
reconciliation between net changes in jind balances-total governmental funds and change in net 
assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One 
element of that reconciliation explains that "Governmental h d s  report capital outlays as 
expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense." The details of this difference are as 
follows: 

Capital outlay 
Depreciation expense 



CITY OF ROSEVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 3 1,2003 

NOTE 3 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. Budgetary information 

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America for the governmental funds classified as the general fund and special revenue 
h d s .  No budgets are prepared for other governmental funds which include the debt service and 
capital projects. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. 

On or before mid-May of each year, all departments and agencies of the City submit requests for 
appropriations to the City's manager so that a budget may be prepared. Before September 15, the 
proposed budget is presented to the city council for review and approval. By September 15, the 
proposed budget and tax levy must be submitted to the county auditor. The Council holds public 
hearings and a final budget and tax levy must be prepared, adopted and submitted to the county 
auditor, no later than December 28. 

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function and department. The City's department heads 
may make transfers of appropriations within a department with approval of the City's manager. 
Transfers of appropriations between funds require the approval of the Council. The legal level of 
budgetary control (i.e. the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is at the 
fund level. The Council made several supplementary budgetary appropriations for the general fund 
and various special revenue funds in 2003. Those supplementary budgetary appropriations were not 
material. 

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds. There were no encumbrances (e.g., 
purchase orders, contracts) outstanding at year-end. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 3 1,2003 

NOTE 3 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued) 

B. Deficit fund equity 

The recreation, general obligation improvement bonds, general obligation tax increment bonds, 
license center, and lawfUl gambling funds had deficit balances of $ 1,138,675, $ 2,153,527, $ 
2,2 14,3 1 1, $9,8 10 and $ 134,196, respectively. These fund deficits are expected to be covered from 
future fund revenues or transfers fio&other funds 

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 

A. Deposits and investments 

At year end, the City's carrying amount of deposits was $19,924,047 of which, $18,954,032 is 
certificates of deposits, and the bank balances were $20,417,877. All balances were covered by 
federal depository insurance or by perfected collateral held by the City's agent in the City's name. 

Investments are categorized into these three categories of credit risk: 

1. Insured or registered, or securities held by the City or its agent in the City's name. 
2. Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counter party's trust department or agent 

in the City's name. 
3. Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counter party, or by its trust department 

or agent, but not in the City's name. 

At year-end, the City's investment balances were as follows: 
Reported 

Category Amount 
1 2 3 Fair Value 

U.S. Government securities $ Q Q $ 27,865,445 
Deposits 19.924.047 
Total Cash and Investments $ 47,789,492 
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DECEMBER 3 1,2003 

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

B. Receivables 

Receivables as of year-end for the City's individual major funds, nonmajor funds, internal service funds and fiduciary hnds in the aggregate. 
See footnote number 1 regarding the collectibility of accounts receivable. 

Receivable 

Accounts 
Taxes 
Tax increment 
Special assesments 

grosshet 
Due fiom other 

governments 

General 

Obligation 

Community Improvement Revolving Street 

General Recreation Development Bonds Improvements Construction 

$ 26,528 $ 62,280 $ 657 $ 11,103 $ 0 $ 0 
53,242 1 0,637 0 6,866 3,519 . 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Nonmajor 

and Other Proprietary 

Funds Funds Total 

$ 646,027 $ 1,178,345 $ 1,924,940 
5,690 0 79,954 

0 0 0 

Total receivables $ 88,718 $ 72,917 $ 16,165 $ 1,613,945 $ 174,162 $ 1,366,025 $ 736,176 $ 1,579,573 $ 5,647,681 

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate 
liabilities of the current period. Governqental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not 
yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue in the governmental funds were as follows: 

Unavailable 
Special assessments and unearned COPS grant revenue (General) 7,586 
Unearned rental fees and Metropolitan Arts Grant revenue (Recreation) 16,787 
Special assessments (Revolving improvements) 15 1,425 
Special assessments (G.O. improvement bonds) 1,599,225 
Special assessments(Street construction) 1,366,025 

Total deferredunearned revenue for governmental funds $ 3,141,048 
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

C. Capital assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31,2003 was as follows: 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Increases Decreases Balance 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not 

being depreciated: 
Land $ 6,720,240 $ 0 $ 887,729 $ 5,832,511 
Land improvements 16,015,78'6 0 0 16,015,786 
Construction in progress 0 6,137,111 0 6,137,111 

Total capital assets not 
being depreciated 22,736,026 6,137,111 887,729 27,985,408 

Captial assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 16,432,895 
Improvements other 

than buildings 4,585,147 
Machinery and equipment 12,795,080 
Infrastructure 80,133,304 

Total capital assets 
being depreciated 1 13,946,426 

Less accumulated 
depreciation for: 

Buildings 4,749,84 1 
Improvements other 

than buildings 956,378 
Machinery and equipment 6,131,002 
Infrastructure 18,773,978 

Total accumulated 
depreciation 30,611,199 

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated, net 83,335,227 (1,641,833) 512,238 81,181,156 

Governmental activities 
capital assets, net $ 106,071,253 $ 4,495,278 $ 1,399,967 $ 109,166,564 
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

C. Capital assets (Continued) 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Increases Decreases Balance 

Business-type Activities: 
Capital assets not 

being depreciated: 
Land $ 475,714 $ 0 $ 0 $ 475,714 
Land improvements 121,017 0 0 121,017 
Construction in progress 0 422,432 0 422,432 

Total capital assets not 
being depreciated 596,73 1 422,432 0 1,019,163 

Captial assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 1,712,513 
Improvements other 

than buildings 5 18,447 
Machinery and equipment 3,118,043 
Infrastructure 3 1,289,689 

Total capital assets 
being depreciated 36,638,692 

Less accumulated 
depreciation for: 

Buildings 1,049,208 
Improvements other 

than buildings 199,675 
Machinery and equipment 2,176,924 
Infrastructure 15,405,827 

Total accumulated 
depreciation 18,83 1,634 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 

Business-type activities 
capital assets, net $ 18,403,789 $ (171,677) $ 40,248 $ 18,191,864 - 
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

C. Capital assets (Continued) 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City is follows: 
Governmental activities: 
General government 
Public safety 
Streets and highways including depreciation of infrastructure 
Culture and recreation 
Community Development 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Sanitary sewer 
Water 
Golf 
Storm drainage 

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities 

D. Construction commitments 

The City has active construction projects as of December 3 1,2003. The projects include the 
improvement of existing streets, water, sewer, and storm systems, rehabilitation of the Arona pond 
for new construction, a public safety addition to city hall, and the renovation of the public works 
building and grounds. At year end the commitments with contractors are as follows: 

Project Spent-to-Date 
Residential street, water, storm construction - public purpose portil $7 1 5,7 1 7 
Arona pond rehabilitaion 368,398 
Public safety addition and public works renovation 5,475,427 

Total $6,559.542 

Remaining 
Commitment 

$20,953 
20,199 

5,Ol3,65 1 
$5,054,803 
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS ( Continued) 

E. Interfimd receivables, payables, and transfers 

The composition of interfimd balances as of December 3 1,2003, is as follows: 

Due to/from other funds: 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund 
General Non-major Governmental h d s  $ 155,000 
Sanitary Sewer Fund Water Fund 849,48 1 
Economic Increments Construction General Obligation Tax Increment Bond 2,2 15,000 
Revolving Improvement Fund General Obligation Improvement Bonds 2,309,000 
Parks and Recreation Infrastructure Recreation Fund 

Replacement Fund 1,075,000 

Total $ 6,603,481 

In the financial statements, due tolfiom other funds are used to cover temporary cash deficits. 

Interfund transfers: 

Transfers In 

General 
Recreation 
Street Construction 
Nonrnajor Governmental 

Funds 
Total 

Transfers Out 
General Infia- Non- 

Obligation structure major 
Community Tax Increment Tax Replace- Govern- 
Develo~ment Bonds Reduction ment mental b d s  Total 

$ 1,361,000 $ 0 $ 300,000 $ 0 $ 100,000 $ 1,761,000 
0 0 0 0 261,010 261,010 
0 0 0 450,000 0 450,000 

Total transfers inlout are created to assist in financing various activities andlor projects. 
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

F. Leases 

The City leases office facilities under noncancelable operating leases. Total costs for such leases 
were $68,959 for the year ended December 31,2003. The fbture minimum lease payments for these 
leases are as follows: 

Year Ending Dec. 3 1 Amount 
2004 $47,382 
2005 24,996 
2006 24,996 

2007-2009 90,000 
Total $187,374 

G. Long-term debt 

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide for financing construction of major capital 
facilities, tax increment projects, and street improvements. Debt service for tax increment projects 
and street improvements are covered respectively by tax increments and special assessments against 
benefited properties with any shortfalls being paid from general taxes. 

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the 
government. These bonds generally are issued as 15 year serial bonds with equal debt service 
payments each year. The original amount of general obligation bonds for the issues listed below is 
$28,790,000. 

General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows: 

Net Interest 

Governmental activities 
Rates Amount 
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

G. Long-term debt (Continued) 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation--improvement bonds are as 
follows: 

Government Activities 
Special Assessment Debt with 

General Obligation Bonds Government Commitment 
Year Ending December 3 1 

2004 
Principal Interest Principal Interest 
$ 0 $ 513,557 $1,330,000 $ 232,405 

Total $9,700,000 $3,617,254 $5,795,000 $ 1,069,695 

Changes in long-term liabilities 

Beginning Ending Due Within 
Governmental Activities Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year 

Bonds payable: 
General obligation bonds $ 0 $ 9,700,000 $ 0 $ 9,700,000 $ 0 
Special assessment debt 
with gov't commitment 7,560,000 0 1,765,000 5,795,000 1,330,000 

Total bonds payable 7,560,000 9,700,000 1,765,000 15,495,000 1,330,000 

Long-term notes payable 60,376 0 14,998 45,378 16,247 
Compensated absences 495,672 473,936 373,997 595,611 63,580 

Governmental activities - 
Long-term liabilities $ 8,116,048 $10,173,936 $ 2,153,995 $ 16,135,989 $ 1,409,827 

Compensated absences are liquidated by the fund in which an employee is assigned, but roughly half 
the employees are assigned to the general h d .  
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

G. Long-term debt (Continued) 

From time to time, the City has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance to 
private-sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial facilities 
deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable 
solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, 
ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance. 
Neither the City, the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for 
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying 
financial statements. As of December 3 1, 2003 there were nine series of Industrial Revenue Bonds 
outstanding, with an aggregate principal amount payable of $67.4 million. 

H. Restricted assets 

The balances of the restricted asset accounts in the enterprise funds are as follows: 

Customer deposits - Water fund $735,879 

I. Prior period adjustment 

In 2003, the City made a prior period adjustment to more accurately reflect the useful lives of its' 
fixed assets. This resulted in: 

Fund Amount 
Sanitary Sewer ($984,02 1) 
Water (2,528,023) 
Golf Course 3,727 
Storm Drainage (5 ,062,4 15) 

Total Business-type Activities ($8,570,732) 

Fund - Amount 
General ($1,112,931) 
Recreation (2 13,657) 
Community Development (7,994) 
Nonmajor Funds (6,870) 

Total Governmental Activities ($1,34 1,452) 
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NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION 

A. Risk management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of damage to, and the destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters. During the fiscal years of 
1980 and 1987, the City established a Workers' Compensation Fund and a Risk Management Fund, 
respectively (internal service funds) to account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss. Under this 
program, for the year 2003, the Worker's Compensation Fund provided coverage up to a maximum 
of $360,000 for each occurrence. The City purchases excess loss coverage from the Workers' 
Compensation Reinsurance Association, a nonprofit organization established by Minnesota State 
Statutes. 

The Risk Management Fund provides comprehensive general liability and comprehensive 
automotive liability up to the statutory maximum of $1,000,000. The City retains the risk of the first 
$50,000 of each occurrence with an annual maximum exposure of $150,000. Liabilities of the fund 
are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and amount of the loss can be reasonable 
estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported 
(IBNRs). The result of the process to estimate the claims liability is not an exact amount as it 
depends on many complex factors, such as inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards. 
Accordingly, claims are reevaluated periodically to consider the effects of inflation, recent claim 
settlement trends (including frequency and amount of pay-outs), and other economic and social 
factors. The estimate of the claims liability also includes amounts for incremental claim adjustment 
expenses related to specific claims and other claim adjustment expenses regardless of whether 
allocated to specific claims. Estimated recoveries, for example from salvage or subrogation, are 
another component of the claims liability estimate. The City purchased commercial insurance for 
claims in excess of coverage provided by the Risk Management Fund and for all other risks of loss. 
Settled claims have not exceeded this coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. There were no 
significant reductions in the City's insurance coverage in 2003. 
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NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

A. Risk management (Continued) 

Enterprise fund charges and the property tax levy are based on a management estimate of claims 
history and the amount necessary to maintain catastrophic reserves. The reserves as of 
December 3 1,2003, were $2,072,332 and $84  1,063 for the Workers' Compensation Fund and Risk 
Management Fund, respectively. The claims liability of $82,386 and $95,196, respectively, 
reported in both funds at December 31, 2003 are based on the requirements of Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10. This statement requires that a liability for claims be 
reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates it is probable that a 
liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be 
reasonably estimated (IBNR). Changes in the funds' claims liability amount in fiscal 2002 and 2003 
were: 

Workers' Compensation Fund 
Beginning of Current Year Ending of 
Fiscal Year Claims and Changes Claims Fiscal Year 

Liability in Estimates Payments Liability 

B. Contingent liabilities 

Risk Management Fund 
Beginning of Current Year Ending of 
Fiscal Year Claims and Changes Claims Fiscal Year 

Liability in Estimates Payments Liability 

The City had the usual and customary types of miscellaneous claims pending at year end mostly of a 
minor nature, and usually all covered by insurance carried for that purpose or the City has reserved 
h d s  for settlement. The City also carries personal injury insurance against suits for false arrest, 
libel, slander, violation of privacy, wrongful entry, etc. which can arise from enforcement of the city 
code and general laws. 
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NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

C. Employee retirement systems and pension plans 

1. Defined benefit pension plans - statewide employees plan 

a. Plan Description 

All full-time and certain part-time employees of the City of Roseville are covered by defined 
benefit plans administered by the Public Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota 
(PERA). PERA administers the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF) and the Public 
Employees Police and Fire Fund (PEPFF), and the Local Government Correctional Service 
Retirement Funds, called the Public Employees Correctional Fund (PECF), which are cost- 
sharing, multiple-employer retirement plans. These plans are established and administered in 
accordance with Minnesota Statutes, chapters 353 and 356. 

PERF members belong to either the Coordinated Plan or the Basic Plan. Coordinated Plan 
members are covered by Social Security and Basic Plan members are not. All new members 
must participate in the Coordinated Plan. All police officers, fire fighters, and peace officers 
who qualify for membership by statute are covered by the PEPFF. Members who are 
employed in a county correctional institution as a correctional guard or officer, a joint 
jailerldispatcher, or as a supervisor of correctional guards or officers or of joint 
jailersldispatchers and are directly responsible for the direct security, custody, and control of 
the county correctional institution and its inmates are covered by the PECF. 

PERA provides retirement benefits as well as disability benefits to members, and benefits to 
survivors upon death of eligible members. Benefits are established by State Statute, and vest 
after three years of credited service. The defined retirement benefits are based on a member's 
highest average salary for any five successive years of allowable service, age, and years of 
credit at termination of service. 

Two methods are used to compute benefits for PERFS Coordinated and Basic Plan members. 
The retiring member receives the higher of step-rate benefit accrual formula (Method 1) or a 
level accrual formula (Method 2). Under Method 1, the annuity accrual rate for a Basic Plan 
member is 2.2 percent of average salary for each of the first 10 years of service and 2.7 
percent for each remaining year. The annuity accrual rate for a Coordinated Plan member is 
1.2 percent of average salary for each of the first 10 years and 1.7 percent for each remaining 
year. Under Method 2, the annuity accrual rate is 2.7 percent of average salary for Basic 
Plan members and 1.7 percent for Coordinated Plan members for each year of service. For 
PEPFF members, the annuity accrual rate is 3.0 percent for each year of service. The annuity 
accrual rate is 1.9 percent for each year of service for PECF members. For all PEPFF 
members, PECF members, and PERF members hired prior to July 1, 1989 whose annuity is 
calculated using Method 1, a fLll annuity is available when age plus years of service equal 
90. Normal retirement age is 55 for PEPFF and PECF members and 65 for Basic and 
Coordinated members hired prior to July 1, 1989. 



CITY OF ROSEVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 3 1,2003 

NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

C. Employee retirement systems and pension plans (Continued) 

1. Defined benefit pension plans - statewide employees plan (Continued) 

a. Plan Description (Continued) 

Normal retirement age is the age for unreduced Social Security benefits capped at 66 for 
Coordinated members hired on or after July 1, 1989. A reduced retirement annuity is also 
available to eligible members seeking early retirement. 

There are different types of annuities available to members upon retirement. A single-life 
annuity is a lifetime annuity that ceases upon the death of the retiree-no survivor annuity is 
payable. There are also various types of joint and survivor annuity options available which 
will be payable over joint lives. Members may also leave their contributions in the fund 
upon termination of public service in order to qualify for a deferred annuity at retirement age. 
Refunds of contributions are available at any time to members who leave public service, but 
before retirement benefits begin. 

The benefit provisions stated in the previous paragraphs of this section are current provisions 
and apply to active plan participants. Vested, terminated employees, who are entitled to 
benefits but are not receiving them yet, are bound by the provisions in effect at the time they 
last terminated their public service. 

PERA issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for PERF, PEPFF, and PECF. That report may be 
obtained on the web at mnpera.org, by writing to PERA, 60 Empire Drive #200, St. Paul, 
Minnesota, 55 103-2088, or by calling (65 1) 296-7460 or (800) 652-9026. 



CITY OF ROSEVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 3 1,2003 

NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

C. Employee retirement systems and pension plans (Continued) 

1. Defined benefit pension plans - statewide employees plan (Continued) 

b. Funding policy 

Minnesota Statutes Chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee contributions. 
These statutes are established and amended by the state legislature. The City makes annual 
contributions to the pension plans equal to the amount required by State Statutes. PERF 
Basic Plan members and Coordinated Plan members are required to contribute 9.1% and 
5.1%, respectively, of their annual covered salary. PEPFF members are required to 
contribute 6.20% of their annual covered salary. PECF members are required to contribute 
5.83% of their annual covered salary. The City of Roseville is required to contribute the 
following percentages of annual covered payroll: 11.78% for Basic Plan PERF members, 
5.53% for Coordinated Plan PERF members, 9.30% for PEPFF members, and 8.75% for 
PECF members. The City's contributions to the Public Employees Retirement Fund for the 
years ending December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 were $276,606, $256,407, and $234,844, 
respectively. The City's contributions to the Public Employees Police & Fire Fund for the 
years ending December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 were $275,818, $268,469, and $259,526, 
respectively. The City's contributions were equal to the contractually required contributions 
for each year as set by state statute. 

2. Single employer defined benefit pension plan - volunteer fire relief association 

a. Plan description 

The City of Roseville (employer) firefighters are covered by a non-employee contributory 
defined benefit retirement plan administered by the Roseville Firefighter Relief Association 
(Association), a single employer public employee retirement system. The Association is 
organized under the Minnesota State Statutes 424A, as amended and provides benefits in 
accordance with those statutes. 

The Association provides retirement benefits as well as disability benefits to members and 
benefits to survivors upon death of eligible members. Benefits are established by the 
Association with approval by the Roseville City Council under the applicable state statutes. 
The defined retirement benefits are based on a members' years of service. Vesting begins 
after the 10th year of service with a 40% benefit increasing to 100% after the 20th year of 
service. 



CITY OF ROSEVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 3 1,2003 

NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

C. Employee retirement systems and pension plans (Continued) 

2. Single employer defined benefit pension plan - volunteer fire relief association (Continued) 

a. Plan description (Continued] 

Full benefits are available after 20 years of service by the member and having attained the 
age of 50. The current benefit is calculated at $27 per year of service per month up to a 
maximum of 30 years. The retiree may also select a one-time lump-sum payment upon 
retirement of $2,700 per year of service. 

There are various types of joint and survivor annuity options available which will reduce the 
monthly normal annuity amount, because the annuity is payable over joint lives. 

The benefit provisions stated in the previous paragraphs of this section are current provisions 
which apply to active plan participants. Vested, terminated firefighters, who are entitled to 
benefits and are not receiving them yet, are bound by the provisions in effect at the time they 
choose to start their benefit. 

The Association issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information for the Roseville Firefighters' Relief Association. 
That report may be obtained by writing to the Roseville Firefighters' Relief Association, 
2700 N. Lexington Ave., Roseville, MN 55 1 13. 

b. Funding; policy 

Minnesota Statutes Chapter 424A sets out the employer requirements for contributions. The 
annual employer contribution level for any given year is a combination of the normal cost for 
that year and an amount to reduce the unfunded actuarial liability. The minimum obligation 
is the normal cost plus the amount needed to amortize fully the unfunded liability. The City 
funding requirements equal the minimum obligation less the Minnesota State fire aid. Under 
state statutes, if the City fails to provide the required funding, the Association may submit a 
levy to the county auditor in an amount equal to the city requirement, to be levied on all 
property within the city. A six year schedule of contributions follows: 



CITY OF ROSEVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 3 1,2003 

NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

C. Employee retirement systems and pension plans (Continued) 

2. Single employer defined benefit pension plan - volunteer fire relief association (Continued) 

b. Funding policy (Continued) 

Schedule of Contributions 
Six Year Period 

Minnesota 
State Aid 

Year Contributions 

1998 $125,126 
1999 127,393 
2000 132,626 
200 1 134,220 
2002 152,658 
2003 186,223 

City of Roseville 
Contributions 

$1 65,690 
125,000 
100,000 
100,000 
179,295 
298,670 

Total 
Contributions 

Percent 
Contributed 

The Roseville Firefighters' Relief Association is comprised of volunteers, therefore, there are no 
payroll expenditures, nor covered payroll expenditure calculations. 

D. Annual pension cost 

For 2003, the City's' annual pension cost of $484,893 is equal to the City's required and actual 
contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the January 1, 2003 actuarial 
valuation. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 5.0% investment rate of return (net of 
administrative expenses); (b) a mortality table of the 1983 Group Annuity Mortality Table for Males 
and Females; (c) termination of 3 percent rate from age 20-30, grading to no terminations after age 
45; (d) disability rates based upon 75 percent of the Railroad Retirement Board Disability Rates; (e) 
entry age based upon age on employment date; (f) retirement age based upon the later of age 55 or 
20 years of service; (g) 85 percent of members are assumed to be married; (h) normal form of 
payment based upon joint and 100 percent to survivor annuity; (i) asset basis based upon market 
value; and (j) level dollar amortization which is sufficient to amortize the unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability by a closed period ending December 31, 2010 and a closed period of 20 years for Plan 
amendments. 



CITY OF ROSEVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 3 1,2003 

NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

D. Annual pension cost (Continued) 

The latest actuarial value of plan liability on January 1, 2004 was $7,760,796. The value of the plan 
assets, valued at market, totaled $6,195,089 on January 1, 2004. A six-year summary of Assets, 
Liabilities and funding ratios are listed below: 

Schedule of Funding Progress 
December 3 1,2003 

Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded 
Value of Accrued Liability (Overfimded) Funded 

Year Assets (Entry Age) Accrued Liability Ratio 
1998 5,956,146 6,029,O 19 72,873 98.8% 
1999 6,741,180 6,200,077 (541,103) 108.7% 
2000 6,263,506 6,787,s 17 524,O 1 1 92.3% 
200 1 5,743,650 7,372,974 1,629,324 77.9% 
2002 5,127,888 7,489,194 2,36 1,306 68.5% 
2003 6,195,089 7,760,496 1,565,407 79.8% 

Covered payroll is not an actuarial factor in determining benefits or funding obligations under 
applicable Minnesota statutes. 

NOTE 6 - INVESTMENT TRUST 

The North Suburban Cable Commission, a separate joint-powers agency, which includes Roseville and 
nine other cities, voluntarily maintains its excess funds with the City to invest and earn interest. The 
City provides for an investment trust and accounts for the funds accordingly. There is no direct 
regulatory oversight of the fund by any other agency, except the investments are in accordance with 
Minnesota State Statutes, which provides for public funds treatment, and thus are restricted within the 
statutes. The Trust's cash is pooled with the City's funds and is classified in Category I. 

The fair value is determined on a monthly basis but is only booked to the investment trust at the end of 
the calendar fiscal year of the City. The method of determining the values and shares of the 
Commission in the investment trust is the same pro-rata monthly average cash method employed with 
all other city funds. The City provides no other guarantees other than the underlying securities, which 
are restricted as per state statutes. 

As of December 31, 2003, the fair value (carrying value) of the commission investment trust is 
$1,586,994. No separate report is issued. 



CITY OF ROSEVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 3 1,2003 

NOTE 7 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

On April 6, 2004, the City refunded $1,725,000 of General Obligation Improvement Bonds. The 
refunding resulted in a net present value savings of $163,275. 

In October 2003, the City created a Housing and Redevelopment Authority (HRA). For fiscal year 
2004, the city council established an HRA levy of $200,000. There were no HRA financial activities 
recognized in 2003. 

For 2004 the City adjusted its' per occurrence and aggregate deductible from $50,000 to $100,000 and 
$1 50,000 to $300,000 respectively 



NonMajor Funds 

Special Revenue 

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures 
for particular purposes 

Tele-Communications - accounts for the revenue and expenditures in the administration, maintenance, and 
participant activities divisions for the culture and recreation functions. 

License Center Fund - accounts for the revenue and expenditures used to provide state hunting, fishing 
and motor vehicle licenses 

Charitable Gambling - accounts for the revenue and expenditures used to promote economic development 

Information Technology - accounts for the revenue and expenditures used to promote economic 
development 

Capital Projects 

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities 
other than those financed by proprietary finds. 

Equipment Fund - used for the purchase of heavy machinery and motorized equipment 

Housing LoanIReplacement - accounts for money received from taxes and fees for improving the housing 
stock in the community 

Parks and Recreation Infrastructure Replacement - accounts for the cost of maintaining specific 
facilities finded by the Series 1995 bond tax increment bond issue 



ASSETS 
Cash and cash 

equivalents 
Taxes receivable 

Unremitted 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other governments 
Due from other funds 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll 
Contracts payable 
Due to other funds 
Due to other Governments 
Deposits 

Total liabilities 

FUND BALANCE 
Unreserved 

Designated for 
subsequent 
years expenditures 

Undesignated 
Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and 
fund balances 

CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON-MAJOR FUNDS 
December 31,2003 

SPECIAL REVENUE 

Tele- License Charitable Information 
Communications Center Gambling Technology Total 



CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 
Parks and 
Recreation Total 

Infrastructure Housing Loan/ Nonmajor 
Equipment Replacement Replacement Total Funds 



CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NON-MAJOR FUNDS 
For the Year Ended December 31,2003 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

REVENUES 
Property taxes 
Intergovernmental revenue 
Licenses & permits 
Gambling taxes 
Franchise fees 
Charges for services 
Donations 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government 
Community development 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Transfer in 
Transfer (out) 
Sale of capital assets 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 

Tele- License Charitable Information 
Communications Center Gambling Technology Total 



CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 
Parks and 
Recreation Total 

InFrastructure Housing Load NonMajor 
Equipment Replacement Replacement Total Funds 



REVENUES 
Franchise fees 
Investment Income 

Total revenues 

CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended December 31,2003 

Budget Variance 
Favorable 

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government 
Personal services 
Supplies & materials 
Other services & charges - 
Capital outlay 66,000 66,000 22,458 43,542 

Total expenditures 41 1,200 4 1 1,200 280,079 131,121 

Excess of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 



REVENUES 
License and permits 
Investment Income 

Total revenues 

CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
LICENSE CENTER FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN F'UND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended December 31,2003 

Budget Variance 
Favorable 

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government 
Personal services 
Supplies & materials 
Other services & charges 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

Other Financing Uses 
Transfer (out) 

Net change in fbnd balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund deficit - ending 



REVENUES 
Licenses & permits 
Gambling taxes 
Donations 
Investment income 

Total revenues 

CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
CHARITABLE GAMBLING FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended December 31,2003 

Budget Variance 
Favorable 

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government 
Personal services 
Other services & charges 75,500 100,500 101,427 (927) 

Total expenditures 1 18,850 143,850 143,262 588 

Excess of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

Fund deficit - beginning (1 04,154) (1 04,154) (1 04,154) 0 

Fund deficit - ending 



REVENUES 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Investment income 

Total revenues 

CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended December 31,2003 

EXPENDITURES 
Personal services 
Supplies 
Other services & charges 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES 

Transfer in 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 

Budget 

Original Final 

Variance 
Favorable 

Actual (Unfavorable) 





Internal Service Funds 

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one 
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the city on a cost reimbursement basis. 

Workers' Compensation Self Insurance Fund - accounts for the revenue and expenditures in the 
administration and servicing of workers' compensation claims. 

Risk Management Fund - accounts for the revenue and expenditures in the administration and servicing 
of general liability claims 



ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts Receivable 

Total assets 

CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
December 31,2003 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Insurance claims payable 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 

Workers' 
Compensation Risk 
Self-Insurance Management Total 



CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

For the Year Ended December 31,2003 

Operating revenues: 
Departmental charges 
Other 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Professional Services 
Insurance 
Training 
Administrative charges 
Payment of claims 

Total operating expense 

Operating income (loss) 

Nonoperating revenues 
Investment income 

Net income (loss) 

Total net assets - beginning 

Total net assets - ending 

Workers' 
Compensation 
Self-Insurance Risk 

Fund Management Total 



CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the Year Ended December 31,2003 

Workers' 
Compensation 
Self-Insurance Risk 

Fund - "-k?iEses -____-- Total .... 
CASH FLOWS FROM 

OPERATING ACTMTIES 
Cash received from users 
Cash payments to suppliers 
for goods and services 
Cash payments to employees 
and others for resolved claims 
Other operating revenues 

Net cash (used) by 
operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
INVESTING ACTMTIES 

Investment income .. . .... . . . . 90,145 27,728 1 17,873 
Net cash provided from investing activities 90, 145 27,728 1 17,873 -. 

Net increase (decrease) in 
cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, January 1 2,085,27 1 940,5 17 -- 3 , 0 2 5 , E  

Cash and cash equivalents, December 3 1 $ 2,171,632 $ 932,404 $ 3,104,036 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to 
net cash (used) by operating income: 

Operating (loss) $ (49,657) $ (1 12,212) $ (161,869) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 

to net cash provided (used) by operating activities 
Changes in elements affecting cash 

(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 0 (3,242) $ (3,242) 
(Increase) Decrease in Due from Other Governments 4,390 0 4,390 
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable 15,097 (1,583) 13,514 
Increase (Decrease) in insurance claim payable -. - 26,386 81,196 -- 107,582 

Net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities $ (3,784) $ (35,841) $ (39,625) 



Agency Funds 

Agency funds are used to report resources held by the city in a purely custodial capacity (assets equal 
liabilities). 

Grass Lake Water Management Organization - This fund accounts for the fiscal activities of an agency 
which is a separate nonprofit entity. 

Community Development Block Grant - accounts for funds awarded to the City through Ramsey County 
for qualified projects that benefit low and moderate income residents. 

Local Development Corporation - accounts for fund received from block grants and other sources for the 
special housing needs related to low and moderate income resident's 

Roseville Lutheran Cemetery - accounts for the fiscal activities of a cemetery under the ownership of the 
Islamic Cemetery Association 

Roseville Visitors Association - accounts for revenues and expense of the Roseville Visitors Association, 
formed as an independent nonprofit agency to enhance tourist and visitor traffic to the City. 



ASSETS 
Cash and cash 

equivalents 
Accounts 

receivable 
Due from other 
governments 

Notes receivable 
Net fixed assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued Payroll 
Due to other 

organizations 

Total Liabilities 

CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - ALL AGENCY FUNDS 

Year Ended December 31,2003 

Grass Lake Community Local Roseville 
Water Development Development Lutheran Roseville 

Management Block Grant Corporation Cemetery Visitors 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Association Total 



CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

Balance 
January 1, 

2003 
ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 83 1,972 
Accounts receivable 37,97 1 
Due from other governments 33,250 
Notes receivable 308,000 
Net fixed assets 48,844 

Balance 
December 3 1, 

Additions Deductions 2003 

Total assets $ 1,260,037 $ 1,310,274 $ 1,122,780 $ 1,447,531 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ 3,471 $ 293,977 $ 290,538 $ 6,9 10 
Accrued Payroll 0 2,940 0 2,940 
Due to other organizations 1,256,566 1,013,357 832,242 1,437,68 1 

Total liabilities $ 1,260,037 $ 1,3 10,274 $ 1,122,780 $ 1,447,53 1 



ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Due from other governments 

CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

AGENCY FUND - GRASS LAKE WATER MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION 
Year Ended December 31,2003 

Balance Balance 
January 1,2003 Additions Deductions December 3 1,2003 ' 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Due to Grass Lake Water 

Management Organization 

Total liabilities 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Notes receivable 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Due to other organizations 

Total liabilities 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Notes receivable 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Due to other organizations 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
AGENCY FUND - COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

Year Ended December 31,2003 

Balance Balance 
January 1,2003 Additions Deductions December 3 1,2003 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
AGENCY FUND - LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

Year Ended December 31,2003 

Balance Balance 
January 1,2003 Additions Deductions December 3 1,2003 

Total liabilities 



ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable 
Due to other organizations 

Total liabilities 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 

Net fixed assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued Payroll 

Due to other organizations 

Total liabilities 

CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF CHANCES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

AGENCY FUND - ROSEVILLE LUTHERAN CEMETERY 
Year Ended December 31,2003 

Balance Balance 
January 1,2003 Additions Deductions December 3 1,2003 

STATEMENT OF CHANCES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
AGENCY FUND - ROSEVILLE VISITORS ASSOCIATION 

Year Ended December 31,2003 

Balance Balance 
January 1,2003 Additions Deductions December 3 1,2003 
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Statistical Section 



City of Roseville, Minnesota 
Table 1 

General and Recreation Fund Expenditures 
Analysis by Function 

General Public Public Parks and 
Year Government Safety Works Other Recreation (1) Total 

(1) A change in policy in 1994 resulted in the combining of the Ice Arena and John Rose 
Minnesota Oval Funds with the Recreation Fund 



City of Roseville 
Table 2 

General and Recreation Fund Revenues and Other Financing Sources 

Charges Inter 
General Licenses for govern- Inter- 
Property and Current mental Fund Other 

Year Tax Permits Services (1) Revenues Transfers Revenues Total 

(1) A change in policy in 1994 resulted in the Ice Arena and John Rose Minnesota Oval Funds 
being combined with the Recreation Fund 



City of Roseville, Minnesota 
Table 3 

Property Tax Levies and Collections 
Current Collections 

Total Current Amount Percent Delinquent Total 
Year Tax Levy Collected of Levy Collections Collections 

Percent 
of Levy 

95.05 

96.13 

98.30 

99.88 

101.1 1 

100.08 

98.92 

93.51 

88.21 

90.98 

(1) Includes tax increments levied and received 
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City of Roseville, Minnesota 
Table 5 

Property Tax Rates and Tax Levies 
Direct and Overlapping Governments 

TAX RATES (Expressed as Net Tax Capacity) 

Year 

1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 

% 2001 
2002 
2003 

1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
200 1 
2002 
2003 

City 

17.399 
18.000 
17.306 
17.75 1 
19.254 
19.997 
19.028 

18.522 
32.108 
25.734 

School 
District 
No. 623 

73.655 
73.798 
75.612 
74.650 
45.028 
57.347 
5 1.942 

41.129 
10.447 - 

12.486 

School 
District 
No. 621 

TAX LEVIES 

County 

44.46 1 
44.692 
43.785 
44.226 
46.618 
47.02 1 
45.100 

42.480 
56.01 6 
54.603 

Districts 

TOTALS (millions of dollars) 
School School 
District District 
No. 623 No. 621 

TOTAL TAX LEVIES 



City of Roseville, Minnesota 
Table 6 

Special Assessment Levies and Collections 
Current Collection 

Percent 
total 

Collection collections 
Total Amount Percent of prior Total to current 

Collected levy Collected of levy years Collection levy 



Fiscal 
Year 

1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

c-. 

8 1998 

1999 

2000 

200 1 

2002 

2003 

Population 

33,487 

33,674 

33,942 

34,O 14 

34,194 

34,306 

33,690 

33,949 

33,949 

34,100 

Assessed 
Value 

City of Roseville, Minnesota 

Ratio of Net Bonded Debt 
To Property Values and Net Bonded Debt Per Capita 

(Gross) 
Bonded Debt 

Less Debt 
Service Funds 

Net 
Bonded Debt 

3 1,889,077 

38,356,075 

36,454,374 

35,423,162 

3 1,745,530 

30,83 1,905 

26,477,844 

12,870,000 

7,560,000 

15,495,000 

Table 7 

Ratio of Net 
Bonded Debt To 
Estimated Net Bonded 

Assessed Market Debt Per 
Values Values Capita 

(1) Gross Bonded Debt includes General Obligation Improvement (special assessment) bonds because property taxes will pay 
approximately seventy-five percent and special assessments will pay twenty-fiver percent. Gross bonded debt also 
includes General Obligation Tax Increment Bonds 

Note: Population figures, other than census years, are estimates furnished to the City by the Metropolitan Council 



Estimated Market Value 

(A) Debt limit 2 percent of 
Market Value 

City of Roseville, Minnesota 
Table 8 

Computation of Legal Debt Margin 
December 3 1,2003 

Amount of debt applicable to debt limit 

Total bonded debt 

(B) Deductions 
General Obligation 
Special Assessment Bonds 

Total amount of debt within Statute 

Legal Debt Margin 

Note (A) M.S.A. Section 475.53 



City of Roseville, Minnesota 
Table 9 

Computation of Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt and 
Comparative Debt Ratios 

Gross Debt Sinking Net Applicable Applicable 
Net of Refunding Funds Debt to City to City 

Governmental Unit 

Direct Debt: 
City of Roseville 

Overlapping Debt* 
School District #62 1 $ 118,183,341 
School District #623 4 1,750,000 
Special School District #9 16 16,120,000 
Metro Council 858,440,429 

C 

0 
N Metro Airports Commission 344,130,000 

Ramsey County Library 1,580,000 
Ramsey County 180,192,000 
Total Overlapping Debt $ 1,560,395,770 

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 1,575,890,770 

Comparative Net Debt Ratios Applicable to City 
Direct Overlapping 

Total Debt Debt 

Debt to gross tax capacity ($33,971,411) 215.97% 45.61% 170.36% 
Debt to market value ($2,954,240,000) 2.48% 0.52% 1.96% 
Per capita debt (Population 34,100) $2,151.58 $454.40 $1,697.18 

*Source: Ramsey County 



City of Roseville, Minnesota 
Table 10 

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures For 
General Bonded Debt to Total General and Recreation Fund Expenditures 

Ratio of Debt 
Total (2) Service to 

Total (1) General and General and 
Fiscal Debt Recreation Recreation 
Year Principal Interest Service Expenditures Expenditures 

(1) Debt Service is for General Obligation Bonds from Schedule of Bonds Payable. 
(2) See Table 1 .  



Year 

1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
200 1 
2002 
2003 

City of Roseville, Minnesota 

Demographic Statistics 

Population 
Census (5) 

33,487 
33,674 
33,942 
34,O 14 
34,194 
34,306 
33,690 
33,949 
33,949 
34,100 

School 
Enrollment (1) 
District #623 

6,763 
6,791 
6,780 
6,738 
6,680 
6,553 
6,560 
6,598 
6,485 
6,369 

2003 Population By Age Groups (3) 

& Po~ulation Percent 

0- 15 Years 5,062 14.84% 
16-64 Years 22,151 64.96% 
Over 64 Years 6,887 20.20% 

Total 34,100 

Unemployment 
Rate (2) 
(Percent) 

2.50 
1.90 
1.90 
1.60 
1.20 
1.20 
2.50 
2.50 
3.10 
3.20 

Housing Units (4) 

Single-Family 8,550.00 
Multiple-Family 7,082.00 
Mobile Home 107.00 

(1) The City is served by two Independent School Districts. 
A. District #623 covers approximately 67% of the City. 
B. District #621 covers approximately 33% of the City. 

(2) Annual average unemployment, Suburban Ramsey County. 
(3) 2000 Census - US Department of Commerce. 
(4) City of Roseville as of December 3 1,2002 
(5) Population and per capita income figures, other than census year, 

are estimates furnished to the City by the Metropolitan Council. 

Table 11 





City of Roseville 
Table 13 

Principal Taxpayers 
December 3 1,2003 

Taxpayer Type 

1) Compass Retail, Inc. (2) Shopping Centers 

2) Bradley Real Estate Trust (2) 

3) Rosedale Properties (4) 

Shopping Centers 

Shopping Centers 

4) M & J Crossroads Limited Partnership (2) Shopping Centers 

5) First Security Bank Trustee (2) Commercial 

6) North Prior LLC Shopping Center 

7) Meritex Enterprises Inc. (2) Shopping Center 

8) Metlife 

9) Dayton-Hudson Corp 

Apartments 50 or More Units 

Discount Stores & Jr Dept Stores 

10) MN Industrial Properties (3) Flex Industrial Center 

2002 
Payable 2003 

Net Tax 
Capacity 

( N W  

$ 2,139,250 

Percentage 
of Total 
(NTC) 

6.30% 

Items in parentheses represent the number of locations in Roseville 



City of Roseville, Minnesota 
Table 14 

Assessed Valuation by Classes of Real Property 

Total real property 
valuation (1) $ 42,223,857 $ 41,983,467 $ 42,751,395 $ 43,994,585 $ 41,896,429 $ 40,336,258 S 43,925,050 $ 49,390,419 $ 36,428,140 $ 40,159,220 

Percent of valuation 
Residential 31.61 31.61 32.36 33.21 36.83 38.17 37.19 36.73 4 1.93 4 1.95 

Commercial 51.21 51.21 50.09 48.44 46.86 45.28 46.38 47.23 42.42 42.20 

Apartment 7.93 7.93 8.41 8.17 7.64 7.04 6.97 6.92 8.21 8.57 

Industrial 8.02 8.02 7.83 8.40 7.36 8.04 7.99 8.10 6.58 6.65 

Utility and other 1.23 1.23 1.31 1.78 1.31 1.47 1.47 1.02 0.86 0.63 
100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 

(1) Source: Ramsey County Annual Report on Property Values 



City of Roseville, Minnesota 
Table 15 

History of Tax Levies and Mill Rates 
(Shown by Year of Tax Collectibility) 

Tax Levies 
Bonded Debt Funds S 1,686,611 S 1,231,187 S 1,078,428 S 1,278,361 $ 1,317,567 S 1,260,675 S 1,114,000 S 1,078,821 S 1,078,821 S 800,000 
General Fund 4,225,607 4,58 1,247 5,262,180 4,921,148 3,399,168 3,466,745 3,500,000 4,018,53 1 5,983,472 6,203,529 
All Other Funds 1,612,143 1,873,646 1,347,009 1,644,464 1,559,581 1,673,467 1,786,887 3,581,919 1,860,591 1,824,355 

Total S 7,524,361 S 7,686,080 S 7,687,617 $ 7,843,973 S 6,276,316 S 6,400,887 S 6,400,887 S 8,679,271 S 8,922,884 S 8,827,884 

Tax Capacity Rate 
Bonded Debt Funds 3.82 3.78 3.20 3.81 4.04 3.94 3.3 1 3.21% 3.84% 2.51% 
General Fund 9.56 14.05 10.10 9.05 10.43 10.82 10.40 1 1.94% 21.31% 19.47% 
All Other Funds 3.65 5.75 4.01 4.89 4.78 5.23 5.32 10.65% 6.63% 5.72% 

Total 17.40 18.00 17.31 17.75 19.25 19.99 19.028 25.80% 3 1.78% 27.70% - - 



City of Roseville, Minnesota 
Table 16 

Schedule of Insurance and Surety Bond Coverage 
December 3 1,2004 

PROPERTY COVERAGES 

Building and contents 
All risk coverage, $100,000 Deductible 

Boiler and machinery 
$100,000 Deductible 

Contractors' equipment 
All risk coverage, $50,000 Deductible 

LIABILITY COVERAGE 

Comprehensive General Liability 
$100,000 Deductible 

Comprehensive Automobile Liability 
(Combined Single Limit $100,000 deductible) 

Workers' Compensation - For losses in excess 
of $360,000 S.I.R. 

SURETY BONDS 

Neal Beets - City Clerk 

COVERAGE LIMIT 

Statutory 

$ 2,000 



Date of Incorporation 
Beccame a statutory city 
Fomn of Government 
Fiscal Year begins 
Area of City 

Miles of streets 
City maintained 
County maintained 
State maintained 

City of Roseville, Minnesota 

Miscellaneous Statistical Data 

Table 17 

Total 
Recreation 

Number of: 
Parks and playgrounds 
Tennis courts 
Lighted park shelters 
Outdoor ice skating rinks 
Ball fields 
Soccer/football fields 
Volleyball courts 
Basketball courts 
Miles of trails 
Joint ownership with School District #623 
Gymnastics center 
Gymnasiums 

Ice Arena 
Ice surface 
Seating capacity 

John Rose Minnesota Oval 
Ice surface 
Seating capacity 

Golf Course 
9-hole, par 3 
Clubhouse 

Fire Protection 
'Number of stations 
Number of active paid-on-call firemen 

Police Protection 
Number of stations 
Number of police officers 

Munici~al water system 
Source 
Number of connections 
Miles of water mains 
Number of fire hydrants 
Gallons of water purchased from St. Paul 

May 28,1948 
January 1,1974 
Council/Manager with 5 member Council 
January 1 
13.7 square miles 

123 miles 
36 miles 
33 miles (Lineal Centerline) 

192 miles 

28 (680 acres) 
3 3 
8 
7 Hockey11 0 Open11 Bandy,Speedskating 
4 1 
5 
9 
8 
50 

1 10,000 square feet 
2,000 

Open April thru October 
Capacity up to 65 people 

City of St. Paul 
10,060 
165 miles 



City of Roseville, Minnesota 
Table 17 (continued) 

Miscellaneous Statistical Data 

Munici~al sewer system 
Miles of: 

Storm 
Sanitary 
Disposal - through Metropolitan Council Erlvironmental Services 

Number of sanitary sewer connections 
Number of street lights 

Number of Dermanent Emdovees 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
200 1 
2002 
2003 

General Elections 
Municipal November, 2003 
Number of registered voters 22,94 1 
Number of votes cast 8,062 
Percent voting 35.14% 

Statewide November, 2002 
Number of registered voters 22.81 1 
Number of votes cast 
Percent voting 

Porpulation 
1948 (at incorporation) 
1950 Federal Census 
1960 Federal Census 
1970 Federal Census 
1980 Federal Census 
1990 Federal Census 
2000 Federal Census 

Maior Em~lovers 
State of Minnesota 
Belltman Group 
Unisys 
Health Span Home Care 
McGough Construction 
Targethlarshal Fields 
Sara Lee Baking Company 
State of Minnesota 
J.C. Penney 
Veritas Corporation 

Products/Sewice 
Transportaion 
Trucking 
Computer Related Services 
Home Health Care 
Nonresidential Costruction 
Retail Sales 
Baking Products 
Education 
Retail Sales 
Prepackaged Software 

139 miles 
153 miles 

November, 200 1 
23,004 
6,950 

30.21% 

No. Emplovees 
1,500 
956 
900 
800 
800 
700 
500 
500 
400 
400 
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